
United Nations
GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

Nations Unies
ASSEMBLEE
GEINERALE

UÎSEESTRICTED

a/ac.io/sr,i 
12 May 19^7

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

60Ш1Т1ЕЕ ON THE PHOGŒffiSSrVE DEVELOPMENT OF 
INTERNATIONAL LAW ÆD ITS CODIFICATION

SÜMM.ARY RECORD OF THE FIRST №ETING

Held at Lake Success, New York, on Mondaj, 12 May 19̂ 7̂  at 3 P.a.

Present;

Chairman; Sir Dalip Singh

Dr, Enrique Ferrer Vleyra
Dr. ¥. A. Wynes
Mr. Gilberto Amado
Dr. Shu-hsi Esu
Dr. Antonio Rocha
Prof. Henri Donnedieu de Vabres
Dr. J. G. de Beus
Mr, Roberto de la  Guardia
Dr. Alexander Rudzlnski
Mr. Erik Szoborg
Prof. Dr. Vladimir Koretaky

Prof. J. L. Brierly 
Prof. P. C. Jessup 
Dr. Carlos Eduardo Stoik 
Prof, Milan Bartos

(India)

'Argentina) 
¡Australia) 
[Bi^azil) 
China) 

¡Colombia) 
¡France) 
'Netherlands) 
¡Panama)

Sweden]
Union of Soviet 
Socialist Republics) 

United Kingdom)
¡United States of America) 
(Venezuela)
(Yugoslavia)

of the Conference by the Assistant Secretary"General in charge 
■ .0? the Legal Department.

Dr. Ivan KERNÔ (Assistant Secretary-General) opened the meeting and 

. bade the members of the Committee welcome to Lake Success. Dr. KERNO 

reminded them of the d ifficu lties of the task of the Committee. The efforts 

of the League of Nations in the fie ld  of codification of international law 

achieved no positive results. The Hague Conference for the codification of 

international law held in 1930 is generally ccmsidered a failure. It  w ill 

be necessary to avoid the errors committed in the past and a new way must 

be found. Dr. KERNO pointed out that the resolution of the General Assembly 

of 11 December 1946 formed the basis of the work of the Committee. I t  was 

to study the method by which the progressive development of international

/law and



А/АСДО/аЕГЛ
Pages

lav and its eventual cddiflcatloa aliould Ъе encouraged, and the. metbod Ъу 

vblch the co-operation of the United Hâtions organs could he secured and 

the aesictance of national and International bodies enlisted. The Ooamittee 

vas given three additional tasks, namely, ( l )  plans for the formulation of 

the principles recognized in the Charter of the ííu^saaharg Trl'Dunal and in 

the Judgement of that Trihunel, (2) a stiidy of the replies hy the 

governments of the Member*States on the Panamanian Declaration vith regard 

to the rights and duties of-States, (3) consultation rsquested by the 

Secretary-General of the United Nations on a draft convention ocncemlng 

the crime of genocide.

Dr. ШШО introduced Dr, Yuen-Li LIANG, Director of the Division of 

the Development and Codification of Intematioimil Lav, vho vould act as 

Secretary to the Coimittee. Dr. ÏŒENO further meiationed that several- 

papers had been prepared by the Secretariat, He pointed out that the r'ole 

of tvo vorking languages voui.d apply. Finally, Dr. SEENO mentioned that 

the Secretariat has entered into contact vith interjoatlonal and national 

organizations' interested in the codification of international law. Several 

organizations,^ both American and Exiropean ones, have representatives at 

present In New York who might even be consulted while the Coomnittee is 

sitting,

2. Election of Officers.

The ASSISTANT SECKETAEY СИЖНАЬ asked for nominations for the office 

of Chairman.

Dr. HSU (China) proposed Sir Dalip SHîGÏÏ (India). His proposal was 

seconded by Prof. «ШЗШР (United States of ihnerica), Prof. BARTOS 

(XugoBlDvia) proposed tlmt the election take place by acólame.tion.

Dr. КЕШЮ stated that Sir Ikilip-SINGH (India) was elected chaiiman 

unanimously.

Sir Dalip SINGH (India) expressed hie gratitude to the meaabers of the 

Ccamittee for the honour done him and his country. .

./The CHAMAN



а /ас  ЛО /SR ol 
ragç 3

ЗЬв CHAIî̂ îAIî asked for nominations for the office of Vlce-Cbairraan»

. Prof, .bRUSI^r (United Kingdom) snggosted that two vice-»chairmen Ъе 

elected, end nominated the representatives of the Union of Soviet Socialist 

РерлЪИсз (Prof. KOFSTSKy) and of Со1шЪ1э (Pr. ROCHA), which nominations 

.were seconded hy Prof. BiffiCas (Yugoslavia). '

The GEAIEMAU stated that the Yios-Chaiimien -were elected xmenimoueiy 

and as]:ed for ncminatiqn for the office of Rapporteur. -

. Ur. UYKIS (A^UBtralia) proposed Prof .vBRîERLY (United Klngdcai) for the 

office of Rapporteur, who wao elected umnimoucly. ,

3. Adoption of the Agencia of the Conmittee (Uocauent a/aCo10/i ) .

The .CHAIEMAIir pointed out that adoption of the agenda did not fix  the 

order in which the items on it  would he taken up for discussion. He stated 

that the .agenda itse lf  was considered adopted and asked for ohservationa on 

the order in which the items should he discussed.

, . Prof, JESSUP (United States of America) proposed that Item 2 he ,

discussed now and then Item 3, and that the order of Items ¡i- to 6 might he
' ■ ■ . / , -•••••. 

discussed .l.ater as the deliberation.^ of the Commit bee developed. This

proposal was .cari’ied, '

h. , Organization of the ..Work of the Comittee. ( I tem  ̂ on the /Igenda) .

. , The ASSISTAKT .SECTffiTAEY-GEIttiEAL observed that the election of the , .

officers vras already part of the organization of tho work .of the Committee.

In order to facilitate  the opening of the discussions the Secretariat had

prepared several papers which contained some ideas mainly to serve as-a

basis for the discussion. , ■ _

... ; Ur, KERiiO menticned that membex’s of the Committee might ■л'-ish to submit

memoranda. The Coraaittee my (a), immediately take the Seci-atarlat papers 

as.basis of discussion or (b) fir^ t have a general discussion on the has: с 

Résolution of the General Assembly. .

, Ur. STOLK (Venezuela) asked whether Item 2 of the Agenda, did not als-'>

bear reference.to tlxe rnlea of procedua’e which war© to govern the
 ̂ ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ '  . . ■ .

 ̂  ̂ , , /Committee's



Committee*s work. Sè vantéd to know irhether the other official languages 

of the United Nations might not also he used by Committee .Meaüuá?ŝ ' Df« STOIK 

further suggestèd, in view of the Tact that several members have also to
-I

attend the Special Session of the. General Aasmbly, that during the firs t  

week not too inany meetings of the Committee be held.

Dr, RUDZINSKÍ (Poland) pointed out that the Comraittee was governed by 

the rules of procedure of the General АзвшЫу, under Rule 107 of these 

rules. The language rules and rules on the conduct of business of the 

General Assembly likewise would apply to the Committee.

The ASSISTAI? SECHiEivEy-GENERAL explained the systsm of five o ffic ia l 

and two working languages. Any member might use any of the five o ffic ia l i 

languages. I f  Spanish or Russian were used, both French and English 

translations would be given by the interp^’ôi'S-e,

Dr. STOIK (Venezuela) pointed out that the election of officers was 

governed by Rule 104 which does not mention any possibility of electing 

two Vice-Chairmen, Dr. Stolk was not opposed to this-election, but he 

Wanted it  recorded that Rule 104 had been modified.

The CHAIRMAN read out the principal rules governing this Comittee and 

asked whether the Committee Tranted a general discussion on the organization 

of its work or wished to take up at once Item 3 of the Agenda.

Prof, BARTOS (Yugoslavia) proposed that the, Bureau of the Ccmanittee 

consult with the Secretariat and submit to the next meeting a plan for the 

organization of the Ccmanittee*s work.

Prof. JESSUP (United States of America) asked whether members who 

had only just arrived and had not been able to study the documents 

distributed shotad not be given an opportunity o f a genea^l discussion.

Prof, BARTOS (Yugoelavla) agreed to this, but in addition asked for 

BuggeetionsVfrom the Bureau#

Prof, KCESTSKY (Union of, Soviet Socialist Republics) wanted to 

distinguish between the method of work and the general discussion. He was

/quite in



A/AC.IC/SR.I 
Page 5

çtuite In agreement >;lth the. pj^pposal that the Bureau make euggestions for 

the methocL of work, hut considered idiat general discussions or declarations 

were unnecessary. Tlie General Assmbly’ s Resolution xms clear епоиф to 

guide the Committee in its task*. Prof. Koretsfcy quoted Tolstoy who \rrote 

that workmen on the fifth  floor of a building were able to do their work 

without beccming dizzy because they looked at what they were doing with 

their hammers. The Committee should follow this rule and should not lose 

the true perspective of its work.

The СНАШШ1,observed, and Prof, JESSUP (United States of America) 

agreed, that by a general discussion was only meant a discussion on the 

method of the work. Prof, Jessup thought that Itcm.3 (a) on the Agenda 

would give z-lse to such a discussion and that хдапу members might have 

proposals to make. . , , . ,

Dr, lOHRNO (Assistant Secretary-General) observed that there was a 

general consensus of opinion that there should be no general discussion on 

the organization of the work of the Committee, The discussions'on Item 3 (a) 

would fuCTaish the Bureau and principally the Rapporteur with the basis frcan 

which conclusions might be drawn with respect to plans for further work.

The CaAIEMíiN concluded that the Committee had now finished with Item 2 

and in reply to an observation from Dr. DE BEUS (Netherlands) replied that 

it  would alvraya be possible to set up any sub-committees which the 

Committee might deem desirable. . . .

In reply to a question from Dr. STOLIC (Venezuela) about the schedule 

of meetings for this week, the Secretary (Dr, Yuen-Li LIANG) suggested that 

until Eriday Inclualvo of this week only afternoon meetings be held so that 

members who had to at':;end meetings of the General Assembly would be free to 

do,, .80. Tïij.3 wc’uld also give the members time'to study the dcctimonts. The 

SiG-ihi'-Rf raenticnod that the dlstribxition of documents to members of Sfcates 

which hed poimancnt DsJ.agationa to the Ux‘-i sod Nations would take place 

throujb the regular channels, and to those vahóse countries did not have

/pemaanent



А/АСЛ0/ ж а  
Page б '

permalient Uelegatlona, directly to their hotels. Secondly, that verbatim 

records would not be pv*lished, while ешзтагу records %rould be distributed.

In reply to a auestlon from Dr. STOLE (Venezuela) whether it  would be 

possible to receive verbatim records Dr. КЕШО (Assistant Secretary-General) 

pointed out that this was unfort\mately impossible as the General Assembly 

had cut down the United Nations budget to such an extent that there is no 

money available for it .

The CHAIEîiAN dreii/ the attention to Eule 6l  and proposed that either 

the Chair or the Ccramlttee could decide that at any meeting on anĵ  subject 

verbatim records would be circulated.

At the suggestion of Dr. LIANG to follow the experience of the 

Legal CoKEiittee of the General Assembly, it  таз agreed that fa irly  complete 

summary records should be made. A member who might wish to have certain 

statements fully recorded might propose that such statements be inserted 

in the summary records or made separate documents.

Dr, KEBNO (Assistant Secretary-General) suggested that members who 

wanted to submit mmoranda on Item 3 (a) of tlae Agenda night send them to 

the Secretariat as soon as possible for distribution.

The meeting adjoxtrned at 5:00 p.m.


